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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of New Mount Trading & Investment Co Limited
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

I. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of New Mount Trading &
Investment Co Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to as “the Group”), (refer Note 29 to the attached consolidated financial
statements), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements™).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as
at March 31, 2025, of consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other
comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ‘
then ended.

|
Basis for Opinion | i
\
|

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of Group, in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in paragraph 15 of the Other Matters section below is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed

in the confext of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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3.

Information Other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

wn

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

6.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows, and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies

included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going -

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountihg
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group, to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group, to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

l1. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
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14.

b

evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements.

 We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

18,

We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of two subsidiaries whose financial
statements / financial information reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 16.94
Lakh and net assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 1.47 Lakh as at March 31, 2025, total
revenue from operations is Rs. 1.64 Lakhs, total comprehensive income of Rs. Nil (comprising profit
and other comprehensive income) as considered in the statement. These financial statements have not
been audited by us and were audited by other auditors. These audited financial statements/financial
information has been audited by other auditors whose reports has been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated annual financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries are solely based on the reports of
other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 20207), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of CARO 2020.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
other auditors on separate Financial Statements of subsidiaries incorporated in India, referred in the
Other Matters paragraph above we report, to the extent applicable, that:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(e)

(h)

-5

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group incorporated in
India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure B.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The Group incorporated in India have not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration to its
directors during the financial year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
I'T of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company did not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2025, which may
effect its financial position of the consolidated financial statements.

ii.  Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.

iii.  During the year no amounts were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company & its Subsidiaries, so the question of delay in
transferring such sums does not arise.

iv.  a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or
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in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, no funds have been received by the Company or any of
such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us or the other auditors
to believe that the representations under paragraph 19 (h) (iv)(a) &(b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

The Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India has not declared any dividend in
previous financial year which has been paid in current year. Further, no dividend has been
declared/proposed for the current year.

For A.K. SARAF & Associates
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No-322316E

¢

o

Proprietor

(Arvind Kumar Saraf) t f

M. No. 056138

UDIN: 250561
Place: Kolkata

o

38BMTERZ6878

Dated: 13" Day of May, 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of New
Mount Trading & Investment Co Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year

ended March 31, 2025

As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the CARO 2020, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 reports of the companies incorporated in India and included in
the consolidated financial statements.

There are no adverse comments in respect of the following entities in the CARO report relating to them

issued by their auditor.

| Subsidiary/Joint
SL Name of the Company CIN Venture/Associa
te
1 Aditya Tyres Pvt. Ltd U52390WB2010PTC150482 Subsidiary
2 Sanuraga Fabtech Pvt. Ltd U17120WB2012PTC183690 Subsidiary

For A.K. SARAF & Associates
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No-322316E

ﬁo‘f{?"? - M .”.:
(Arvind Kumar Saraf) ' )

Proprietor .

M. No. 056138 S
UDIN: 25056138BMTERZ6878
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 13" Day of May, 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 18 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report on Consolidated Financial Statements to the Members of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of New Mount Trading & Investment Co Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

2

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries to whom reporting
under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

3

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by
the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to consolidated finanicial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

o
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procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial
controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated

financial statements

6.

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prévention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Inherent limitation of internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL
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Other Matters

9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it
relates to subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect

of this matter.

For A.K. SARAF & Associates
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No-322316E

Aol
(Arvind Kumar Saraf) : 15 )

Proprietor N /
M. No. 056138 o
UDIN: 25056138BMTERZ6878

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 13" Day of May, 2025



New Mount Trading & Investment Co Ltd

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2025

3 Amount (Rs in Lakhs)
) Note
Particulars No As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
1. ‘ASSETS
() Non-Current Assets
G Properey, Plant and Fqguipment 3 1,927.97 2,247.72
(b Capiral Work-in-Progress 3A 0.00 0.00
(hy Oyrher Inmnaible Assers 3B 0.46 0.46
() Frnenal assers
{1 Invesoments 4A 68.22 68.65
(1) Orher Financial Assers 5 77.92 77.88
Total Non-Current Assets 2,074.57 2,394.72
(2)  Current Assets
G Inventores 6 1,930.32 2,780.67
DY Fonenl Assers
1 lovestments 4B 1,375.09 20.00
(1 I'rade Recervables 7 896.79 706.66
() Cash and cash cquivalenrs 8 177.22 916.94
(<) Oher Cuerent \ssets 9 304.56 293.67
Total Current Assets 4,683.98 4,717.93
TOTAL ASSETS (1+2) 6,758.55 7,112.65
IT. EQUITY AND LIABILITES
() Equity
ard Share Caparal 10 921.82 921.82
(hy Cither Ty 11 2,836.99 2,821.58
Toatl Equity 3,758.81 3,743.40
Liabilitics
(2) Noun-current liabilities
) Financial Liabilines
(1) Borrowimus 12° 66.49
() Provisions 13 41.48 40.49
(¢) Deferred Tax labilines (Ner) 14 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 41.48 106.98
(3) Current liabilities
G Fanend Labihnes
{1} Hm'rn\vin:ﬁr’:«‘ 15 30111 1,153.03
() Trade Pavables 16
- Lol ourstandings due to Micro Finterprises and Small
lingerprises
- Torl oursrndmes duc to ereditors other than Micro
Fnrerprses and sonall Fncerprises 1,380.76 #51.93
My Orher Lanbihines 17 1,276.41 1,257.34
Total Current Liabilities 2,958.27 3,262.28
: TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1+2+3) 6,758.55 7,112.65
| K
Corporate Information 1
Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates 2
___Other Disclosures 26 - 31

For LkeSam b & Assoctates
hartered Acconntants

Frem Registeation No: 3223161 e

P
Arvind Kumar Saraf

Prapavecar i/

Membership No- 50138

Plice of Sumatare keolkata
Dace < 13 Aay, 2025

!

oA~

Jamnotri Gupta

Director

DIN: 00L

Al

Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes | to 31 are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
New Mount Trading & Investment Co Ltd

CIN: LG?’IZ&)WB 1975PLCO30153
S

umar Rungta

Anup
Director
DIN: 00759839

Company Se
ACS : 45774

ék/u
Mudit Kumar Srivastava

Manager

9

et
 Sharma

el husodie

Sneha Chowdhury

cretary




New Mount Trading & Investment Co Ltd
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

For The Year Ended 31st March 2025

(Amount (Rs in Lakhs)
Pasticulats Note No. Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
March 2025 March 2024
I  Revenue from Operations 18 25,146.13 23,293.73
11 Orher Income 19 93.85 66.43
I Total Income(I-+IT) 25,239.98 23,360.17
[V Expenses:

Purchase 21,877.23 20,883.63
Changes ininventories of finished goods 20 §50.35 (143.68)
limplovee benehirs expense 21 27491 265.92
Iunce cosrs 22 151.96 315.51
Diepreciation and amortization expense 23 381.16 416.92
Orther expenses 24 1,676.56 1,956.26
Total Expenses (IV) 25,212.18 23,694.57

V  Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (IIT - [V) 27.80 (334.41)

j\’l lixeepional Tems - 1,335.73
VII Profit/(Loss) before tax (V - VI) 27.80 1,001.32
VIII Tux expense : '

(1) Current tax 11.23 45.70
(2} Income Tax for Fadher years 1.16 -
(3) Deterred Tax - -
Total Tax expense 12.39 45.70

IX  Profit/(Loss) for the year (VII - VIII) 15.41 955.62
120 Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 25
(\) () Lrems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Fair value changes of Investments in equity shares - -

(i) Income tax relating ro items that will not be reeycled - -

to profic or (loss)

Toral other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) - -

X1 Total Income /(Loss) for the year (IX + X) 15.41 955.62
¢ Comprising of profit] (lass) awd other comprebensive incowre for the year)
{XI1  Earnings per equity shace ( Nomiual value per share Rs 10 /-)
(1) Basic (Refer Note no 29 (4)) 0.17 10.37
(2) Diluted (Refer Note no 29 (4)) 0.17 10.37
Corporate Information 1
Signilicant Accounting Policies and Estimates 2
o e DISUISRUIES s s el (- N
The i(.(.()lnpﬁll;_\ ing notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements
T'his is the Standalone Consolidated of profit and loss account referred to in our report of even date.
For A.IK.Saral & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accounlents New Mount T'rading & Tnvestment Co Ltd
Firm Registration Nr: ")?23£(?E —— CIN: 1.67120WB1975P1.C030153
W \ w G Swebea Chovodluon
| )
Arvind (umm Saral ., ]'mmom :pm Anup Kumar Rungta Sneha Chowdhury
Propuvetor ; Director Director Company Secretary
i \Membership No - 056138 L DIN : 00118639 DIN: 00759839 ACS : 45774
o
Place of Signarure : Kolkara e é‘{*
Dyare : 13th AMay, 2025 Aj harma Mudit Kumar Srivastava
Chief Financial Officer Manager




Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

New Mount Trading & Investment Co Ltd

(a). Equity Share capital:

For the year ended March 31, 2025

( Rs in Lakhs)

Balance as at April 1, 2024

Changes in equity
share capital Due to
Prior Period Errors

Restated Balance
at the beginning
of current
Reporting Period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the year

Balance as at
March 31, 2025

921.82

921.82

For the year ended March 31, 2024

( Rs in Lakhs)

Balance as at April 1, 2024

Changes in equity
share capital Due to
Prior Period Errors

Restated Balance
at the beginning
of current
Reporting Period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the year

Balance as at
March 31, 2025

921.82

921.82

(b) Other Equity :

( Rs in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus

Securities Premium
Reserve

General Reserve Statutory Reserve

Retained

Earnings

Other Comprehensive
Income

Total Other Equity

Balance as at April 1, 2024

1,599.63

562.84

122.84

536.27

0.00

2,821.58

Changes in Accounting
Policy or Prior Period
Errors

Restated balance at the
beginning of the period

Changes w cquity during,

the year ended 31-03-2025

Profit for the year

|

Other Comprehensive
income/loss lor the year

Transfer from/to ather
Comprehensive

income/retained L:'.u'lliugs

15.41

15.41

Balance as at March 31,
2025

1,599.63

562.84

122.84

551.68

2,836.99

(b).Other equity : ( Cont)

( Rs in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus

Securities Premium
Reserve

General Reserve

Statutory Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Other Comprehensive
Income

Total other equity

Balance as at April 1, 2023

1,599.63

562.84

122.84

-419.42

1,865.90

Changes in Accounting
Policy or Prior Period
Friors

Restated balance at the
beginning ol the period

Changes in equity during
the year ended 31-03-2024

Profic for the year

Other Comprehensive
|.n..-unn:/l055 for the year

(301.80)

(301.80)




Transfer from/to other
Comprehensive
income/retained earnings

Balance as at March 31,
2024

1,599.63

562.84

122.84 (419.42) v 1,865.90

Notes forming pare of the financial szatements (1 to 34)

(Che accompanying notes I to 34 are an in tegral part of the financial statements)

\s per our report of even date areached

For A.K.Saral & Associates
Clwartered Accomittanis

Firm Rewiseration Nos 3223 1615

mﬂf‘l
Arvind Kuimar Sacaf
Proprietor
Membership No- 056138

Place of Signature @ Kolkar
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New Mount Trading & Investment Co Ltd
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Amount (Rs in Lakhs))

Particulars

Year ended 31st March 2025

Year ended 31st March 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

rofit Belore Tax

alivities

Deprecition and amortisation expensce

IFair value loss on financial Instruments at FVTPLL

1oss/ (Profit) on sale/discard of property,plant & equipment
Profit from Sale of Mutual Fund

Interest Received from Income Tax

Provision for Gratuity
Operating profit/loss before working capital changes

Addeestments n reconeile aperating profit fu cash flow proviced by changes in working capital
Decrease/ (inerease) i trade and other receivables

Increase/Deerease in Inventories

Inerease in Non-current & other financial labilites

se in other financial Assets

¢ in other current habilities

Cash generated [rom operations

Tax Expense

Net cash generated from operating activities A
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant & cquipment

Addition to Intangible Assets

Purchase of Mutual Fund

Proceeds from Sale of of Asscts

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Fund

Sale of Property, Plant & Liguipment

Addinons to Capital Work i Progress

Net cash used in investing activities B
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long Term - Borrowings

Proceeds from Short Term - Borrowings

Net cash (used in) financing activities C
Net decrease/ Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Opening cash and cash equivalents

Closing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of

Cash Flow Statement (Refer Note No. 3)

Adjuestments fo reconile profit befure exeepiionel itens and tax: to et cash flow provided by aperating

27.80 1,001.39
381.16 416.92
(1.32) (1,335.88)
(57.96) (1.93)
(3.65)
0.99 9.41
319.22 (911.49)
347.02 89.90
(190.13) (39.31)
850.34 (143.67)
528.83 211.34
(0.26) (0.29)
19.07 203,18
(89.54) 265.64
1,118.31 496.88
1,465.33 586.78
70.43 (126.17)
1,535.76 460.61
61.49 90.96,
(61.49)
- (0.11)
(20.00)
1.38
(1,296.69) 601.93
- 1,392.98
(0.00) (0.00)
(1,356.80 1,883.85
(66.49) (817.36)
(851.92) (650.57
(918.40) (1,467.73)
-139.43 876.75
923.69 47.98
184.26 923.69

Notes:

Statement of Cash Flows

3) Cash and cash equivalents as at the Balance Sheet date consists of:

1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the  Indirect Method © as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-7 on

2) Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use

Particilis As at 31st As at 31st

March 2025 March 2024

Balances with banks

On current accounts 133.32 §91.32

Cheques on hand .07 1011

Cash on hand 26.83 15.51

Cash Credit

Deposits with original maturity less than 12 months

Unpaid Matured Deposits 13.60 3.52

Closing cash and cash equivalents 180.81 920.46

Add : Fixed Deposits with Banks ( with more than 12 months maturity) 345 323

Add : Non-Current Bank Balances - -

Closing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement 184.26 923.69

As per our report of even date attached

For AK.Saraf & Asgsociates
Clurtered Acoomtants
Fiem Registeation No: 3223161

I

Arvind Kumar Saraf
Proprietor () Director

Membership No - 056138 [ DIN: 00118639

Place of Signature ¢ Kolkata
Date = 13th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

New Mount Trading & Invesiment Co Lid

CIN: 1671200 B1975PLCO30153

Anup Kumar Rungta
Director

CTN:‘W"?{‘)S?;‘)

——

Chief Financial Officer

&b Chrovod b
Sneha Chowdhury

Company Sccretary
ACS: 45774

2
Mudit®umar Srivastava

Manager




NEW MOUNT TRADING & INVESTMENT CO LTD

NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note No: 1 Corporate Information
Corporate information

New Mount is a public limited company domicile in India incorporated under Ancestral
Companies Act. 1956. It is engaged in Production of Flours, Real Estate Construction.

The Registered Office of the Company is situated at 26, J L. Nehru Road, 2nd Floor Suit No
22, Kolkata - 700087,

Note No: 2 Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind-AS prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

The transition was carried out from Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India which
comprised of applicable Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, other pronouncements
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), relevant applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956, and the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable and the
applicable guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
(“Previous GAAP”).

All the Ind-AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the approval of these financial
statements. '

2.2 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS under the historical
cost convention on accrual basis except for the following:

1) Certain financial instruments that are measured in terms of relevant IND AS at fair
values/amortized cost at the end of each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

%



NEW MOUNT TRADING & INVESTMENT CO LTD

The financial statements including notes thereon are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rupees”or
“Rs.”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All amounts disclosed
in the financial statements including notes thereon have been rounded off to the nearest
rupees as per the requirement of Schedule 11T to the Act, unless stated otherwise.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic benefits would flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the revenue proceeds
is received from customers.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the Government.

The specific recognition criteria for revenue recognition are as follows:
a) Sale of Goods

Sale of goods is recognized at the time of transfer of substantial risk and rewards of
ownership to the buyers for a consideration. It excludes sales tax/VAT, Service Tax, GST
(Goods& Services Tax), trade discounts and rebates & goods returns,

b) Rendering of Services
When the services are performed as per contact/arrangement.
¢) Interest Income

Interest Income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable. In respect of non-performing loans & advances interest is
not recognized.

d) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is
established i.e. in case of interim dividend, on the date of declaration by the Board of
Directors; whereas in case of final dividend, on the date of approval by the shareholders.

F) Insurance Claim

Insurance and other claims to the extent considered recoverable, are accounted for in the year
of claims. However claims and refunds, whose recovery cannot be ascertained with
reasonable certainty, are accounted for on acceptance basis.

F) All other incomes are accounted for on accrual basis.

Under IND AS-18, Revenue from product sales & services is recognized exclusive of taxes &
net of returns. sales discounts, etc. Sales return are accounted for when goods are return.




NEW MOUNT TRADING & INVESTMENT CO LTD

2.4 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current
market conditions.

The company categorizes Assets & Liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed for such measurement:

a) Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

b) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable either
directly or indirectly for asset or liability.

¢) Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities which are not based on observable market data.
2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or deemed cost on date
of transition less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of an asset
comprises of purchase price, borrowing cost and any other cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Capital work in progress includes machinery to be installed, construction and erection
materials, borrowing costs, unallocated pre-operative and other expenditures directly
attributable towards construction and erection of assets.

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciation has been provides on written down value method as per the useful life specified
under schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on incremental cost arising on
account of exchange difference is computed prospectively with respect to the residual life of
respective asset.

The company does not hold any leasehold property. Freehold land is not depreciated
2.6 Inventories

(i) Finished products are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

(ii) Stores and Spares and Construction materials are vélued at cost.

(iii) Work In Progress is valued at cost.

(iv) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchases, cost of conversion and other cost
directly attributable to the acquisition thereof. To arrive at the cost of inventories, the FIFO
cost formula along with the retail method for measurement of cost has been adopted.



NEW MOUNT TRADING & INVESTMENT CO LTD

2.7 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a) A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at current pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

When discounting is used, the increase in the passage of time is recognized as finance costs.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation as at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably. The expense relating to provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
net of any reimbursement.

b) A contingent liability is not recognized in the financial statements, however, is disclosed,
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an
item dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognized in the financial statements
of the period (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be

made).

¢) A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements, however, is disclosed,

where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realization of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognized as an asset.

d) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet

date.
2.8 Employee benefits
a) Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wages, including non-monetary
benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.
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b) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company pays provident and other fund contributions to publicly administered fund as
per local regulations.

The Company has no further obligation, other than the contributions payable to the respective
funds. The Company recognizes contribution payable to such funds as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service.

¢) Defined benefit plans

The Company doesn't operate a defined benefit gratuity plan, which requires contributions to
be made to the recognized fund.

Company doesn't carry out the Actuarial valuation of the Defined benefit plan (Gratuity). The
company has provided liability for Gratuity on the basis of valuation made at the end of
financial year.

2.9 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost compromises of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the
borrowings of the funds. All borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss
using the effective interest method except to the extent attributable to qualifying Property,
Plant & Equipment (PPE) which are capitalized to the cost of the related assets. A qualifying
PPE is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent considered as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.10 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Balance sheet when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company
determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition based on its nature and characteristics. ‘

a) Financial Assets
i) Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. The financial assets include equity, trade and other
receivables, loans and advances, cash and bank balances.

ii) Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following

categories:

)
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| ) At amortized cost.
2) At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and

3) At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are
met:

1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

2) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR

Equity Investments
All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category, if any, are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in profit or loss. The Company may malke an irrevocable election
to present in OCI subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is

irrevocable.

[t the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in OCIL. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
iii) De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset.
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b) Financial Liabilities
(1) Initial Recognition and Measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdratts, derivative financial Instruments etc.

(ii) Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two

categories:

1) Financial habilities at amortized cost, and

2) Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢ ) Share Capital

An equity instrument is'a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.

2.11 Impairment of Assets
a) Non-Financial Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to selt and value in

use. iy

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Jen ff
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If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss
no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment loss previously
recognized is reversed such that the asset is recognized at its recoverable amount but not
exceeding written down value which would have been reported if the impairment loss had not

been recognized.
b) Financial Assets
Investments

Long term Investment being in investment in equity shares are stated at fair value through
other comprehensive Income (OCI).

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market and cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets is determined using valuation techniques
including Net Asset Value method.

2.12 Government Grants

Government grants are recognized on systematic basis when there is reasonable certainty of
realization of the same. Revenue grants including subsidy/rebates are credited to Statement of
Profit & Loss Account under "Other Income” or deducted from the related expenses for the
period to which these are related. Grants which are meant for the purchase, construction or
otherwise for acquisition of non-current assets are credited to respective assets.

2.13 Taxes

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the
provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred Tax resulting from "timing difference”
between taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws enacted
or substantively enacted on the balance sheet date. Deferred Tax asset is recognized and
carried forwardly only to the extent that there is virtual certainty that the asset will be realized

in future.
2.14 Earnings per Share

a) Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

b) Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and also the weighted average number of equity shares which could be issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.15 Segment Reporting

The company is engaged in various activities across various geographical area with different
political & economic environment, risk & returns etc. Accordingly operating segment have
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been identified based on different business activities and operation not covered in any
specified activity is disclosed under an unallocated segment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques on hand,
balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of changes in
value.

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and
cash equivalents, as defined above and net of outstanding book overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

2.17 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

2.18 Lease (Transition on Ind AS 116)

With effect from April 1, 2019 the Company has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases using the
modified retrospective approach.

Ind AS 116 - Leases introduces a single, on- balance sheet lease accounting model for
lessees.

A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items.

Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard - i.e., lessors continue to classify
leases as finance or operating leases It replaces existing leases guidance, Ind AS 17, Leases.
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of
Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses
significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the
applicable discount rate. However, the company does not have any lease contracts as a lessee,
hence there is no impact in the financial statements of the Company.




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the yvear ended 31 March 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs)

NOTE NO : 3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Propetrty, Plant and Equipment

Land ( Free |Factory Non-Factory |Office Plant Motor Furniture  |Electrical Office Total

hold) Building # Building # Building # |and Vehicles and fixtures |Equipment  |Equipment
Particulars Famipmant
Gross block
Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2024 118.01 1,381.92 54.14 24.05 3,865.37 248,40 971 337.03 143.97 6,182.60
Additions during the year = z - s 54.07 = z 5 7.43 61.49
Dizposals /Deductions during the vear - = = - ? 0.86 - 0.86
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 118.01 1,381.92 54.14 24.05 3,919.44 247.54 9.71 337.03 151.40 6,243.23
Depreciation /amortisation/ impairment - “ = = 5 - - =
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation as at 1 April 2024 - 664.69 44.35 19.41 2,662.98 208.18 9.01 256.55 69.70 3,934.87
Depreciaton/ amortisation for the vear - 69.22 0.64 0.54 221.16 13.29 0.11 21.64 54.56 381.16
Disposals /Deductions during the vear = - - = - 0.78 - & 0.78
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation as at 31st March 2024 = 733.92 44.99 18.95 2,884.14 220.69 9.12 278.18 124.26 4,315.25
Net carrying amount as at 31st March 2025 118.01 648.00 9.15 4.10 1,035.22 26.85 0.59 58.84 27.14 1,927.97
Net carrying amount as at st April 2024 118.01 717.22 9.79 4.64 1,202:39 40.22 0.70 80.49 74.27 2,247.72

# Gross carrying amount in some cases includes value of land also however no depreciation has been charged on land value

Note:
Of the Above:

(i) Plant.Machinery & Equipment, Closing WDV as on 31.03.2025 amounting to Rs.
(ii) Title Deeds of Immoveable Propertes are held in the name of the company.

1.005.29 (P.Y 1,202.39) Lakhs has been pledged as security against secured borrowings (Term Loan) from Canara Bank

NOTE NO : 3A CAPITAL WORKIN PROGRESS

As at 31st| As at 31st
Particulars March March
2025 2024
Opening Balance 0.00 71.79
Add: Additions during the year - 33.05
Less: Capitalized during the year - -104.84
Closing Balance 0.00 0.00




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Canital Work-In Progress (CWIP) - Ageing Schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particular Less than 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
Year years

Projects in Progress 0.00 = - -
Projects Temporarily Suspended = - =

As at 31st March 2025 0.00 - - .
Projects in Progress 7179 - - -
Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - -

As at 31st March 2024 71.79 . - -
Note:
There is no overdue or delayed Capital work-in-progress with original plan.
INOTE NO : 3B INTANGIBLE ASSETS
‘ . Tenancy |Goodwill Total
| Particulats Rights
(Giross block
Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2024 0.35 0.11 0.46
Additions during the year - =
Disposals /Deductions during the year ; - -
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 0.35 0.11 0.46
Depreciation /amortisation/ impairment - -
|Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation as at 1 April 2024 - - =
Dyepreaimnon, amornsation for the year - B -
Drsnosals /Deductions during the vear 5 - -
—K;;umulated depreciation/ amortisation as at 31st March 2025 - - -
Net cartying amount as at 31st March 2025 0.35 0.11 0.46
Net carrying amount as at Ist April 2024 0.35 0.11 0.46




' NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as atand for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No. : 4A Investments ( Non - Current Assets)(INon Trade)

. ) As at 31st Number of As at 31st
| Particulars Face Value | Number of Sl:nfes March 2025 S March 2024
(i) Equity Instruments
(1) Designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income Fully paid up
(Ungquoted)
Investment in Other than Susidiary & Associate
Eq Sh of Shivang Commodities Pvt Ltd 10 13,76,700 13.77 13,76,700 13,77
Eq Sh ol Shyam Agro Foods Pvt Ltd 10 - - 4,325 0.43
Eq. Sh. of Shyam Housing & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 10 99,000 54.45 99,000 54.45
TOTAL(A) 68.22 68.65
Aggregare Investment carried ar cost 68.22 68.65
Agurepare [nvesnnent designated at faie value through other comprehensive income

(i) Particular of the Investment made by the Company required to be furnished u/s 186 (4) of the Co Act 2013 are as given in Note no (3

Note No. : 4B Current Investments ( Current Assets)

) above.

3 ot va o e 2 . As at 31st Number of As at 31st
Pacticulars Fac_e Value | Number of Units March 2025 TR March 2024
(i) Investment measured at Fair Value Through Other : a
Comprchensive Income (FVTOCI)
In Mutual Fund et A
Bandhan Dynamic Bond Fund Regular Plan Growth 6,09,785 200.00 45,606 20.00
ISP Ulpea Short Fund Regular Plan Growth 2,468 81.15 - -
D=E Mol Asseth Aallocation Fund Regular G rowth 2,46,092 31.00 - -
IS Tndia Esport Opportunitics IFund Regular Growth 4,99,975 50.00 - -
FISBC India Faport Opportunities Fund Regular Growth 50,067 5.00
FISBC Tow Dureation Fund Regular Growth 3,62,727 - 100.00 - -
FISBC Mulu Cap Fund Regular Civowth 1,49,981 | 25.14 - -
PISBC Ul Short Duration Fund Reguale Groweh 1,162 15.04 - -
Nippon Indim Uliea Shoet Duration Fund Regular Growth 3,625 13_6.46 - -
Nippon India Power & Infra Fund Growth Plan 64,334 217.00 - -
Linion Money Market Fund Regular Pln Growth 9,756 11712 = -
Ulnion Flext Cap Fund Growth 1,71,607 -81.00 - -
Whireoak Capatal Ul Short Duranion Fund Regular Growth 21,778 289.18 = -
Whitcoak Capiual Large Cap lund Regular Growth 1,98,790 27.00 - -
Total of Investment measured through FVTOCT 1,375.09 45,606 20.00
Total Current Investment 1,375.09 45,606 20.00
Aggregate Amount of Investment 1,375.09 20.00
NAV AS ON 31.03.2025 1,376.11 20.62
Aguregate mvestment carried at cost 1,375.09 20.00

X

vegare investment designated at faiv value through other comprehensive income




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No. : 5 Other Financial Assets
Non-current (Unsecured, considered good)

Patticuliis As at 31st As at 31st March
March 2025 2024

(a) Security Deposits 70.87 71.13

(b) Fixed Deposits with Banks

Bank deposits with more than 12 months

maturity 3.45 3.23

(c) Others

Unpaid Matured Deposits * 3.60 3.52
77.92 77.88

Note (a) : Security deposits are payable an demand hence carried at cost without discounting

Note No. : 6 Inventories (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable

value, unless stated otherwise)

Pariicils As at 31st As at 31st March
March 2025 2024

Residential Flats 1,347.29 1,756.37

Finished Goods 199.39 458.75

Raw Materials 267.29 430.16

Packing Materials 116.35 135.38

1,930.32 2,780.67

Note No. : 7 Trade and other receivables (carried at cost) .

Current (Unsecured, considered good)

Badticaliits As at 31st As at 31st March
March 2025 2024
Trade Receivables
(i) Trade Receivable considered Good -
Secured
(ii) Trade Receivahle considered Good -
Unecured 896.79 706.66
(iii) Trade Receivables which have significant
increase in Credit Risk
(iv) Trade Receivables which have significant
increase in Credit Risk
896.79 706.66
Less:- Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - -
Total 896.79 706.66




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 DMarch 2025

Trade Receivables include debts due by:

Directors *
Other officers of the Company *
Firm in which director is a partner *

Private Company in which director is a member
* Either severally or jointly

(i) Undisputed

(iii) Disputed

(iv) Disputed

(v) Provision

. Tt Réceluables (i) Undisputed Trade Trade for doubtful Total
Particulars SR Trade Receivables—| Receivables— Receivables — receivable | [(i)+{ii)+(iii)
Considered Doubtful| Considered Good| Considered (Disputed + +(iv)-(v)]
Good % :
Doubtful Undisputed)
31st March 2025
Unbilled Dues
Not Due
Less than 6 months 841.00 841.00
6 month-1 years 7.43 7.43
1-2 Years - 21.23 21.23
2-3 Years 13.41 13.72 27.13
More Than 3 Years -
Total 861.84 34,95 896.79
31st March 2024
Unbilled Dues
Not Due
Less than 6 months 634,25 634.25
6 month-1 years 0.35 21.05 21.40
1-2 Years 36.41 0.18 36.59
2-3 Years 14,42 14.42
More Than 3 Years -
Total 671.00 35.65 706.66

Note :

Allowances for Doubtful Debt is not considered necessary hence no allowances are made

Since trade receivables are outstanding for a period less than six months from the due date for payment and is payable on demand hence itis carried at

cost instead of amortized cost

# The Company is hopeful of recovery of full amount, hence no provision has been made in the accounts.

Note No. : 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at 3lst As at 31st March
e March 2025 2024

Balances with banlks

On current accounts 133.32 891.32

Cheques on hand 7.07 10.11

Cash in hand 26.83 15.51

Other Bank Balances

Unpaid Matured Deposits * 10.00 -
177.22 916.94

* Fixed Deposit of Rs. 10,00,000/- pleged with Regional Food Controller, Prayagraj




NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
Note No. : 9 Other Current Assets (Unsecured, considered good)

Pt As at 3lst As at 31st March
March 2025 | 2024
Advances Other than Capital Advances
a) Security Deposit 2 1.81
b) Advances to Related Parties
(Refer Note (b))
c¢) Other Advances
(i) Advance to suppliers 179.05 72.86
(ii) Advance to Others 6.70 11.62
(i) Advance to Employees 3.47 3.65
(iv) Prepaid Expenses 16.57 21.24
(v) Accrued Interest 0.15 0.29
(vi) Rent Receivable 1.21 217
(vii) Electricity Duty Subsidy Receivable 1335 13.35
(viii) Other Receivable - 1.87
(ix) Balances with Govt Authorities 10.16 12.26
(x) Income Tax Payment(Net of Provisions) 73.90 152.55
304.56 293.67

Note (a) : Security deposits are payable on demand hence carried at cost without discounting
(b): Advances Due by Directors or Other Officers of the Company

Directors * - -

Other Officers of the Company * % -

Firm in which director is a partner * . -

Private Company in which director is a member - =

* Either severally or jointly

s



NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note No. : 10 Share capital

As at 31st March 2025 |

As at 31st March 2024

|

| Particulars |
No of Shares Rs. No of Shares Rs
(a) Authorised
Equity shares of par value 10 /- each 95,00,000 950.00 95,00,000 950.00
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 92,18,166 921.82 92,18.166 921.82
Equity shares of par value 10 /- each
921.82 921.82
(c) Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding
lParticulars | As at 31st March 2025 1 As at 31st March 2024
No of Shares Rs No of Shares Rs
Balance at the beginning of the year 92,18,166 921.82 92,18,166 921.82
Changes due to prior period errors -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year - -
Changes during the current year -
Balance at the end of the year 92,18,166 921.82 92,18,166 921.82

(d) The Company has only one class of equity shares. The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared

from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

(¢) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential dues. The distribution will be in proportion to the number ofequity shares held by

the shareholders.

(f) Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the equity shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder

As at 31st March 2025

‘As at 31st March 2024

No of Shares g * | No of Shares
o of holdi % of holdin.
held ’ ng held . g
Deepika Agrahari 19,87,467 21.56 19,87,467 21.56
Neelima Gupta' 18,86,800 20.47 18,86,800 20.47

(h) For the period of 5 years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared

(g) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestments

|Name of the Shareholder

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

No of Shares

No of Shares

(1) Aggregate number and class of shares allored as fully paid up
pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash

(b) Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid by

way of bonus shares

() Aggregate number and class of shares bouglht back

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL




NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025 .

(i) There were no securities issued having a term for conversion into equity / preference shares,
(j) There are no calls unpaid in respect of Equity Shares issued by the Company

(k) There are no forfeited shares by the Company

(1) The company does not have any holding company.

(m) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Name of the Promoter i )
No of Share held | % of Holding | No of Share held| % of Holding
Deepika Agrahari 19,87,467 21.56 19,87,467 21.56
Neelima Gupta 18,86,800 20.47 18,86,800 20,47
Jamnotri Gupta 4,30,000 4,66 4,30,000 4.66
Vidup Agrahari 1,00,000 1.08 1,00,000 1.08
Note No. : 11 Other equity
‘ |
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 |
(a) Securities Premium 1
Balance as per last account 1,599.63 1,599.63
(b) General Reserve
Balance as per last account 562.84 562.84
(c) Statutory Reserve
Balance as per last account 122.84 122.84
(d) Retained Earnings
Balance as per last account 536.27 - (419.42)
Less: I'ransfer from Other Comprehensive Income
Less : Net Profit/]oss for the Year 15.41 = 955.69 S
Add : Transter from Other Comprehensive Tncome - 551.68 536.27
(¢) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as per last account - -
Add : Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - -
Less : "Transfoer to retained carnings = - < .
2,836.99 2,821.58

Note :

(i) Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The ceserve s cligible for utilization in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act 2013.

(i) General reserve is a free reserve and can be ualised for any general purpose like issue of bonus shares, payment of dividend, buy back of shares cre.

(ii1) wer Comprehensive income ('OCT) represents the cumulative pains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity  instruments meaured ar Fair value
(in) Orher ( hensive 1 1 ¢ )

through Other Comprehensive income (OCI) ner of Taxes.




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note No. : 12 Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(i) Non - Current i

; As at 31st As at 31st March
Particulars
Match 2025 2024
From Bank :
Term Loans (Secured)- From Bank
Indian Rupee Loan From Canara Bank # 155.25
(Rate of Interest @ 9.25%)
Less:-Repayable within 12 months
(Amount disclosed under "Current Liabilities - Borrowings") (A) - 38.76
66.49
Total 66.49

Particulars of Loans

Purpose (as per

Whether used for
the purpose

If no, mention
the purpose for

Loan Agreement) | stated in the loan which it is
Agreement utilised
Purchase of
Term Loan Plant & Yes NA
Machinery
Note No. : 13 Provisions
Non-Cutrent
Pagticiilais As at ?:_lst As at 31st March
March 2025 2024
Provision for employee benefits - Gratuity 41.48 40.49
Contingent Provision for Standard Loans - -
41.48 40.49




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
Note No. : 14 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31st
Matrch 2025

As at 31st March
2024

Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation

Note:

In assessing the realisability of the deferred tax assets, management cosniders whether some portion or all of the deferred

(tax assets will not be realized. In view of uncertainities of future profits the management has considered prudent not to

make provision for Deferred tax inrespect of book loss.

Note 15:- Borrowings

: As at 31st IVlarch Asat 31st Viarch
Particulars 2025 2024

From Bank :

Working Capital (Secured)

Indian Currency loan From Canara Bank # 286.11 919.26

(Rate of Interest @ 6.75%)

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings (Secured) - 88.76

Unsecured Loans

From Directors - 130.00

From Bodies Corporate(Sanuraga) 7.50 7.50

From Bodies Corporate(Aditya) 7.50 7.50
301.11 1,153.02

4 The term loan and cash credit facilities are Secured by Hypothecation / pledge of all present and future plant & machinery including
other fixed assets, stock, current and non current assets and mortgaged of land & building situated at Malak Balau, Allahabad owned by
the Company and freehold property measuring 853 Sq. Mtr. situated at 44, Thornhill Road, Allahabad owned by a director of the company
and further guaranteed by the directors of the Company Mr. Vidup Agrahari, Mr. Anup Kumar Rungta and Ms. Deepika Agrahari.

Particulars of Loans

Purpose (as per

Whether used for
the purpose

If no, mention
the purpose for

Loan Agreement) | stated in the loan which it is
Agreement utilised
Purchase of
Term Loan Plant & Yes NA

Machinery




NOTESTO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as atand for the year ended 31 March 2025

Wote 16: Trade Payable

2

FUAsatdist Parch -
U028

S Particulars Jo

ASAL

Jistharch-"

Trache Payablies

Tatal qutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(MISAE) .
. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME PALTG

851,93

1,380.75

851.93

MNowe:-

Pavimens dagainst suppies Trom Moo, Small & Moduom Parerpers

ik 1o the ceoent ascerosined From vaikabile mtormasion, there was

informaten has beeo dotermined e die extent such pactes have been idengied on

O RANY.

RINR ‘:'Ulii": LTLCTELR

the basts of mibrmanon

s the vear end, Fhe alzove

able wil the

Pased on the st vadabic wids the Company, theve are to owsaeding dues

corviers Fevond the zneatlcd pevod sader Moo, sl aed Mediom Feterorises Dol
! ] !

intreyt papabic or patd o any suppliors under the said Aa,

ments made toany supplier of goods and
L2006 PSMIEED A There s ne

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

'-DispUté'@‘:Dl_ies -

isputed:Dies - -

Total

Totai -

Patiulats s ohers
31st March 2025
Unbilled Payables .
Payables Not Due -
Less than 1 year 1,380.76 1,380,76
1-2 years .
2-3 Years N
More Than 3 Years -
Total - - 1,380.76 - 1,380.76
31st March 2024
Unbiiled Payables -
Payables Not Due .
Less than 1 year 848.81 848.81
1-2 years -
2-3 Years 3.13 313
More Than 3 Years
- 851.93 - 851.93

Note 17:- Other Liabilities

o RS BT SISt March [ SRS Ak a1t Wraren

Particulars C 075 : aoza

Statutory Liabilities 17.25 18.61
Cther Liabilities 125016 L3373
1,276.41 1,257.34

Al




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No. : 18 Revenue from Opetations

Particular Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Sales of Product (Gross) 25,465.,15 23,632.67
Less:- Cash Discount & Discount Allowed (320.69) 25,144.46 (340.88) 23,291.79
Sale of Services
Commission Received 1.66 - 1.94
25,146.13 23,293.73
Note No. : 19 Other Income
BERGIA Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2025 |31st March, 2024
Interest Income on
Bank Deposits 0.63 0.51
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 1.32 0.16
Profit on Sale of Investments 57.96
Other Non-Operating Income 33.94 65.76
93.85 66.43
Note No. : 20 Change in Inventories of Finished Goods
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES !
Particulars YearEnded YearEnded
31st'March, 2025 |31st'March, 2024
Inventory at the end of the year
Residential Flats 1,347.29 1,756.37
Finished Goods 199.39 458.75
Raw Materials 267.29 430.16
Packing Materials 116.35 135.38
(A) 1,930.31 2,780.67
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Residential Flats 1,756.37 2,018.09
Finished Goods 458.75 213.70
Raw Materials 430.16 284.48
Packing Materials 135.38 120.72
(B) 2,780.67 2,636.98
(B) - (A) 850.35 (143.68)




NOTES TO
- CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No. : 21 Employee Benefits Expense

Particul Year Ended Year Ended
qurigdighy 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Salary & Wages 219.29 213.51
Provident Fund 16.75 15.97
Bonus 11.58 9.73
Staff Welfare 14.82 14.26
ESI 3.11 3.04
Gratuity - Paid 8.37 -
Provision For Gratuity 0.99 9.41
274.91 265.92
Note No. : 22 Finance Costs
LY Year Ended il  Year Ended
3 31st March, 2025 -,3‘_Ist March, 2024
Interest on Term loan 9.96 82.95
Loan Processing Charges 6.20 14.09
Interest on CC 135.81 1134.28
Interest Paid to Others - 84.19
151.96 315.51
Note No. : 23 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXEPNESES
Bhaiticuiahs Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Depreciation for the Year 381.16 416.92
‘ 381.16 416.92




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Note No. : 24 Other Expenses

Particulars Year EndEd. : Yea‘r:Ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Audit Fees
- Statutory Audit 0.55 0.55
Tax Audit Fees 0.25 0.25
Advertisement 39.80 18.94
Bank Charges 3.34 0.87
Brokerage 104.33 101.68
Conveyance 11.10 12:13
Damage & Short Material 48.25 35.90
Electricity Charges 414.70 418.32
Filing Fees 0.41 0.45
Guest Entertainment Expenses 2.00 14.71
Insurance Premium 32.12 37.52
Lab Expenses 4.31 Z2
Legal & Professional Expenses 13.91 27.27
Listing Fees 1.81 -
Loading, Unloading & Packing Expenses 247.44 228.04
Miscellaneous Expenses 23.36. 24.20
Membership & Subscription Fees 0.57 1.13
Pest Control Expenses 4.00 1.05
Power & Fuel 1.96 5.15
Printing & Stationery 3.82 4.61
Postage & Telegram 0.22 0.27
Rates & Taxes 41.15 45.44
Rent 4.48 2.92
Sales Promotion Expenses 5.89 20.59
Security Expenses 10.96 11.26
Sundry Balances Written Off 1.30 257.20
Telephone charges 1.71 1.54
Travelling Expenses 7.78 17.21
Truck Freight & Running Expenses 468.54 507.10
Vehicle Running Expenses 11.39 13.00
Repairs & Maintenance
Buildings 58.22 29.16
Plant & machinery 62.09 56.27
Others 44.78 58.80
1,676.56 1,956.26




NOTES TO

- CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

atatand for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. In-Lakhs)

Note No. : 25 Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Year ended 31st March 2025

Year ended 31st March 2024

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Fair value changes of Investments in equity shares
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be  reclassified
to profit or loss

Total other Comprehensive Income




NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Note No. : 26 Other Disclosutes

1. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

a) Contingent liabilities : (Rs In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March|  As at 31st
2025 Match 2024
The Service Tax Authorities of Allahabad has raised a
demand of service tax for the period from July 2010 to
March 2014, the Company has disputed the said demand
and filed an appeal before the Customs Excise Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT), Allahabad. ‘
- Service Tax NIL 114.37
- Penalty NIL 114.37

Note No. : 26 Other Disclosures ( Continued)

2) Based on the information / documents available with the Company, the amount due to micro and small
enterprises as per the requirement of Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 is Rs Nil (Previous year Nil).

3) The Company was registered as Non Banking Financial company (NBFC) vide certificate No. B.05.01904 with Reserve
Banlk of India under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Since the activities of the company are no longer of Financial
Nature, the company has filed an application before the Reserve Bank of India for the cancellation of registration as NBFC
and surrender the certificate of NBFC to the Reserve Bank of India on 9th April, 2018, Since the company has already
surrendered the certificate of registration, the company is of the opinion that there is no need to transfer any amount to
Statutory Reserve.

4) Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37:- Provisions, Contingent liabilities
and Contingent assets

(i) Nature of Provision

Provision for Contingencies

Provision for contingencies represent provision towards various claims made/anticipated in respect of duties and
taxes and other litigation claims against the Company based on the Management’s assessment

(ii) Movement in Provision:-

Other

Particulars Duties & Taxes  Litigation Total

Claims
Balance as at 1st April, 2024 NIL
Provided during rhe vear
Used during the year NIL
Reversed during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 NIL
Non-current NIL
Current
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 NIL
Provided during the vear
Used during the vear NIL
Reversed during the vear
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 NIL
Non -current NIL
Current




NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Note No. : 26 Other Disclosures (Continued)

(5) Earnings per share - The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic / Diluted Earnings
Per Share

Year ended
31st March
2024

Particulars Year ended 31st
e Match 2025

(a) Amount used as the numerator
Profit after Tax - (Rs in Lacs) (A) 15.41 955.69
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

used as the denominator for computing Basic Earnings
Per Share (8) 9218166 9218166

Add: Weighted average number of dilutive potential equity shares =
(C) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
used as the denominator for computing Basic Earnings

Per Share () 9218166 9218166
(d) Nominal value of equity shares (Rs) 10.00 10.00
Basic Earnings Per Share (A)/(B) 0.17 10.37
Diluted Earnings Per Share (A)/(C) 0.17 10.37

L2



NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No. : 26 Other disclosures (Continued)
6) Related Party Disclosures :
As per Ind AS 24, the disclosure of transaction with therelated parties are given below.

Relationship Name of the Party

Jamnotri Gupta

Vidup Agrahari

Dicector Vibhav Agrahari

Anup Kumar Rungta

Maheshbhai Parsottamdas Patel

Sneha Chowdhury - Company Secretary

ey Managedal Personnel Ajay Sharma - CFO

Mudit Kumar Srivastava - Manager

Aditya Tyres Pvt Ltd

Substdiary Company
’ : Sanuraga Fabtech Pt Ltd

Directors are common SBW Udyog Ltd

Director are Partner Shree Shyam Enterprises

Director is Propricror Digvijay Nilima Enterprises

Relarve of Dirceton Shyam Trading Company

Transactions During the Year

“Amount (Rs in Lakhs)

Closing as on

Nagme Nature of Transactions 31:03.2023 31.03.2025
Shyam Enterprises Reimbursement of Electricity Charges 5.87 -
Shyam Enterprises Godown Rent Paid 0.24 -
SBW Udyog Ltd Reimbursement of Diesel & Lubricants - 0.30 -
SBW Udyog Ltd Rent Paid 2.12 -
SBW Llfi_\ug I,.Ecl. Rent Paid
(Hotel Kanha Shyan) 0.99 “
SBW Udyog Ltd. Guest Entertainment Expenses & Sales Promotion
(Hotel Kanha Shyan) Expenses 0.88 -
SBW Udyog Ltd. N
(Hotel Kz):uha Shyan) SalEGrateal 9.18 -
SBW Udyog Ltd Sale of Agro Products 1.17 -
Digvijay Nilima Enterprises Sale of Material 34.23 -
Digvijay Nilima Enterprises Purchase of Materials 0.34 -
Shyam Housing and Finance Private Limited Advance Repaid 200.00 -
Shyam Trading Company Purchase of Materials 0.35 -
Ajay Sharma Salary 9.66 -
Mudit Kumar Srivastava Salary 3,72 -
Salary 1.80 -

Transactions During the Year

Amount (Rs in Lakhs)

; Closing as on
e Nature of Transactions P i 31.03.2024
Shree Shyam Enterprises Reimbursement of Electricity Charges 707.00
Shree Shyam Enterprises Godown Rent Paid 0.24
Shree Shyam Enterprises Reimbursement of Expenses 0.06
SBW Udyog Ltd Sale of Vehicles 0.65
SBW Udyog Lid Reimbursement of Diesel & Lubricants 37.00
SBW Udyog Lud Rent Paid 1.42
S Tk Guest Entertainment Expenses & Sales Promotion 1.62
SBW Udyog Ltd Sale of Agro Products 11.98
SBW Udyog Ld Sale of Land 1,392.00
Shree Shyam Enlerprises Sale of Agro Products 1.01
Shree Shyam Enterprises Purchase of Materials 1.07
Digvijay Nilima Enterprises Sale of Material 33.13
Digvijay Nilima Enterprises Rent Received 0.53 0.53
Digvijay Nilima Enterprises Reimbursement of Expenses 1.38
Shyam Housing and Finance Private Limited Advance Received 200.00 200.00
Ajay Sharma Salary 9.66
Mudit Kumar Srivastava Salary 3.72
Sneha Chowdhury Salary 1.50




NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Outstanding Balances

Amount (Rs in Lakhs)

Nature of Gsilii paid During | Received During| Closing ason
Transactions i & the year the year 31.03.2025
Jamnotri Gupta Loan Received 130.00 130.00 - -
Outstanding Balances Amount (Rs in Lakhs)
Nature of Gatiliie paid During | Received During| Closing ason
Transactions 8 the year the year 31.03.2024
Jamnotri Gupta Loan Received 130.00 . 130.00

~
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CONSOLIIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Note No. : 26 Other disclosures ( Continued)

7) Segment Reporting

Based on guiding principles given in Ind Accounting Standard - 108 on "Segment Reporting" notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015, the
Company's business activities primary business segment are Cold Storage, Clearing and Forwarding Agency of Indian Qil Corporation Ltd, Real Estate Business &
Production of Flours. The Company does not have any geographical segment. Financial information about the primary business segments are presented below.

Segment information for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year ended 31st March, 2025

For the Year ended 31st March, 2024

Real

" Real

Agro Bzt Unallocated Total Agro Eoiais Unallocated Total
REVENUE
Revenue from Operation 24,499.76 675.07 65.15 | 25,239.98 22,824.06 520.20 15.97 23,360.23
Total Revenue 24,499.76 675.07 63.49 | 25,238.31 22,824.06 520.20 15.97 23,360.23
RESULT
Segment Results Before Interest & Tax 6.63 87.79 61.72 156.14 85.99 171.97 1,094.94 1,352.90
Finance Cost (151.96) - - (151.96) (231.32) (84.19) - (315.51)
Provision for Taxation - 11.23 11.23 - - 45.70 45,70
Deferred Tax - - - - -
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - -
Net Profit {145.33) 87.79 72.95 15.41 (145.33) 87.79 1,140.64 1,083.09
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 3,605.30 1,383.82 1,754.71 6,758.55 3,973.23 | 1,820.31 1,364.49 7,158.03
Segment Liabilities 448.38 335.34 2,216.02 2,999.75 2,104.37 11732 1,147.17 3,369.26
Capital Expenditure 61.49 - - 61.49 162.56 - 0.30 162.86
Depreciation 371.54 0.81 8.81 381,16 403.63 1.21 96.96 416.92

Notes : 1. Segment Revenue in each of the above Business Segment includes Sales, Miscellaneous Income and Interest income.
2. Segment Revenue, Result, Assets & Liabilities include the respective amount identifiable to each of the Segment.




N‘OTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note No. : 26 Other Disclosures (Continued)
7 Financial instruments - Accounting, Clssification and Fair Value Measurements

A)  Financial Instruments by category

As at 3ist March, 2025

Pisticoins 1 Rn:f;\rl Note ] i i Deemed Carrying Value Total
o Cost
Amorized  pypocr  FVTPL
cost
1) Financial assets
(1) Tnvestments 4
- Invesrment in slaees & sccurities 1,431.54 : - 1,431.54 1,431.54
i) Othee Financial / 5 7192 77.92 77.92
(i) Trade and other recavables 7 896,79 s 896.79 * - 896.79
(1v) Cash and cash equi 3 177.22 ] - 177.22 . S 177.22
(vi)Other Cuerent Asses 9 304.56 - - 304.56 N = 304.56
TOTAL 2,888.03 - - 2,888.03 J - 2,888.03
2) Financial Liabilites
(i} Borrowings - Non-Current 12 % 5 - - .
(i) Borrowings - Current 15 301.11 - - 301.11 30111
(iil} Trade Payable 16 1,380.76 - - 1,380.76 1,380.76
TOTAL 1,681.87 - - 1,681.87 - 1,681.87
As at 3lst Marchy, 2024
anm’cui:\rs Refer Note Total Fair Cost Deemed Carrying Value Total |
No Value Cost
Amortzed EVTOCI FYTPL |
cost
1) Financial assets
(i) lnvestments 4
- lnvestment in shares & securities 38.65 - E 88.65 - - 88.65
(i) Other Financial Assets 5 77.88 77.88 77.88
(i) Trade and other receivables 7 706.66 - - 706.66 - - 706.66
(iv) Cash and cash cquivalents 8 916.94 - - 916.94 - - 916.94
(v) Loans 9 - - - 0.00 - - 0.00
(vi)Other Cucrent Assets 10 339.04 - 339.04 £ - 339.04
TOTAL 2,129.17 2 % 2,129.17 - 3 2,129.17
2) Financial Liabilites 66 = 66 - - 66.48769
(i) Borrowings - Non-Current 13 1,153.02 - - 1,153.02 - - 1,153.02
- |tii) Borrowings - Current 16 851.93 - - 851.93 - 851.93
(iii) Trade payable q 17
= 2 2,071.44 o -
TOTAL 2,07L44 * 4 = £ 2 2,071.44

B,  Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amountat which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between

willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

(1) Eair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than eash and cash equivalens, wade and other re
and other cureent financial labilines approsimate thei cacrying ammounts due to the short termt matur

es of these s

(2) The Company uses the following fair value hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

ve markers For identical ussers or liabilicies.
uclee within Level | that

At aee nor based on obseevable market data (unobseevable inputs).

Level L: Quored prices (unadjustecd) in
Level 2: lnputs ather than quered pric cable foc the asser oc liability, eithee dicecrdy or indivectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or labilidies t

(i) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at Fair value on a recurring basis as at 31st March, 2025:

anim.mm ater NOt fevel Levelz  Level3s  Toul J
I) Finauncial assets
AtFVTOCI
(i) Investments in Equity [nstruments & Securities 5 - - 1,443.31 1,443.31
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS - - 1,443.31 1443.31

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at Fair Value on a recurring basis as at 31st March, 2024

Particulars N‘E”r" Note ; veit Level2 Level 3 Total

1) Financial assets

AtFVTOCI
iy I in Equity In & Securities 5 - - 88.65 38.65
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS - - 88.65 88.65

There have been transfer between Level | to Level 3 either during the year ended 31st March 2025 or during the year ended 3lst March 2024

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation
The following table shows the valuation technique and inputs for financial instruments

<, loans and other current & Non-current finat

ussers,

Pardeiiliss As at 3lst As ac 3lst

B March 2025 March 2024

Investments in unqoted equity shares At Cost

Since there is 10 gain or loss in re-measurement of Investments in unquoted equity shares during the F.Y 2024-25 & F.Y 2023-24 hence re ilintion is not id
Fair value of [nvestments in unquoted equity shares is carried out by using level 3 basis.

I 1 in unquoted p shares are taken at cost as it will be reedemable in equity hence fais value approximates the transaction price , ic, cost




NOTESTO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
Note No. : 28 Other Disclosures ( Continued)

8) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial liahilities are Borrowings & trde payables, etc charactersied with repayable m short period and or due date.

The Company’s principal financial assets include Trade recervables, Cash and cash cquivalents & other financial assets that dentve directly from its operations.

The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these asks and the appropuace financial cisk
activities aee governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
5.

The Company 15 exposed (o erecht ask, liquidity ask ane market risk.

governance framework for the Company. The management provides assurance that the Company’s financil s

s are idennified, meas tunce with the Company’s policies and risk object
pany’s | ¥

wed and managed in a

that fimancial ris

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managing each of these asks, which are summarized below :

(A) Market Risk

Market risk is the ask that the fair value of future cash fows of a financial istrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market rsk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency visk and other risks, such as regulatory ask and commodity price visk.

(L [nterest Rate Risk

steument will fuctuate because of changes in macket intecest wates. The Company’s exposure to the

Taterest vue risk i the vsk that the Gur value or future cash flows of a Gnancial i
sk of changes in market mterest vates relates prmaily to the Company’s obligations twwards Bank overdeafe with floating interest cates.

(I1) Foreign Currency Risk

[‘orcign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fature cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in Foreign exchange rates. Since Company doesn’t have any
exposure in Poreign cureency therefore it doesn’t effects the company's cash flow.

(I1)  Credit Risk

Credit visk is the risk that counterpacey will not meet its obligations under a financal instrument or custmomer confract, leading to a financial loss.

we based on assumptions about tisk of default and expected loss rtes. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
as well as fooward looking estimates at the end of each balance sheet date.

The impairment for financial asse
the inputs t the impaiement ealeulation, based on the Company’s past history, existng market conditions

cts are written off when there s no reasonable expectation of recovery, however, the Company contnues Lo atempt to recover the recewvables. Where recoveries are

Financal
made, these are recognised in the Statement of Profic and Loss

(IV)  Trade Receivables

Treade receivables are non-interest bearing and as per agreed with the parties.

s for major clients. In addition, a lige number of minoc receivables are grouped

An impaiement analysis 15 performed at each balnce sheetr date on an individual by
arment collectively

homogenous groups and assessed for imp
()] Balances with Banks

Credi risk from balinces with banks is munaged in accordance with the Company’s policy

(B) Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and short term loans from banks.

Note No. : 26 Other Disclosures (Continued)
10)  Capital Management

(a)  Risk Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity eapital, scurities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue a5 a going concetn so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and
other stake holders. .

“I'he Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in the financial condition and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shaceholders, tetuen capital to shareholders (buy back its shaves) or issue new shares.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensuce that it meets financl covenants attached to the interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. 'The Company has complied with these covenants and there have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any

and borrowings.

interest-bearing log

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managung eapital during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and for the year ended 31st March 2024

In asscssing the recoverbility of its assers including receivables and inventory, the company has considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of these
financial stutements including cconomic forecasts. The company has performed analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the
company expects to recover the carrying amount of these asscts. The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements & the company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions,

11) Gearing Ratio

The Company has long term debt and accordingly the company has 100% gearing ratio as on 31st March, 2024; 31st March, 2025

PEER As at 3lst| As at 3lsg
March 2025  [March 2024
Net long Term debt - 66.49
Total Equity 3,758.81 4,555.41
Net LongTerm.Debt to value ratio 0% 100%
N A




NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at atand for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note No. 27 : Principles of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the following basis in accordance with Ind AS on “Consolidated Financial Statements” (Ind AS — 110), “Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures” {Ind AS — 28) and “Disclosure of interests in other entities” {Ind AS — 112), specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in these consclidated
financial statements from the date on which controls commences until the date on which control ceases.

Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Loss of Control

When the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCl and other components of equity.
Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

Transactions eliminated on conselidation

The financial statements of the Company, its Subsidiaries used in the consolidation procedure are drawn upto the same reporting date i.e. March 31, 2025,

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
The Group follows uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are comprised of the financial statements of the members of the Group as under:-

Name of the Compan Princi lace of Busi
pady foalel RS % of Shareholding & Voting

Power

As At March | As At March
31, 2025 31,2024

(i) Subsidiary Companies
(a) Aditya Tyres Pvt Ltd India 100.00% 100.00%
(b) Sanuraga Fabtech Pvt Ltd India 100.00% 100.00%

Note No. 28 : Goodwill on Consolidation

Goodwill represents the difference between the Company’s share in the net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in
the subsidiaries. For this purpose, the Company’s share of net worth is determined on the basis of the latest financial statements prior to the acquisition after making necessary
adjustments for material events between the date of such financial statements and the date of respective acquisition.

Note No. 29 : Additional Information as required by Paragraph 2 of Part I1I - General Instruction for Preparation of CFS of Schedule TII of the Companies

Act, 2013,
Net Assets I.e. Total Assets dre n. tmer Shaxe m‘Tota
minus Total Liabilities Share in Profit or Loss Comprehens_we Income Comprehensive Income
Sl No Name of the Entity in the Group (ocy (ren
As % of As % of As % of As % of
consolidated | Amount consolidated | Amount consolidated | Amount consolidated |Amount
net assets (Rs in Lakhs) |net assets (Rs in Lakhs) |net assets (Rs in Lakhs) [net assets {Rs in Lakhs)
1 Parent 99.97% 3,757.64 95.74% 14.75 0.00% - 0.00% -
2 Subsidiaries
Indian
(i) Aditya Tyres Pt Ltd 0.00% 0.26 0.79% 0.12 0.00% - 0.00%
(ii) Sanuraga Fabtech Pvt Ltd 0.02% 0.90 3.47% 0.53 0.00% - 0.00% -
Total 100.00% 3,758.81 100.00% 15.41 0.00% = 0.00% =
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NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at atand for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Rs. in Lakhs)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Other Disclosures

Ad nal Regulatory [nformation

Amended Schedule I1I requires additional regulatory information to be provided in financial statements.
These are as follows;

Security of Current Asset against Borrowings

The Company has borrowing from Bank on the basis of sccurity of Current Assets and it has filed the required statement of Cureent Assets as per the terms of borrowings and there is no case of over reporting
(excepe mn few cases which were immaterial considering the quantum of the amount involved) in the quarterly statement of Current Asset filed with the Bank and with the books of Accounts of the Company. there
is 1o case of over reporting in the quarterly statement of Current Asset filed wich the Bank and with the books of A¢counts of the Company.

Utilization of Borrowings
The Company has utlized the borrowed fund for the purpose for which they weve vaised.

Utilization of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium

(&) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or Share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded m writng or otherwise ) that the mtermediary shall;

) Directly or indirectly lent or invest m other person(s) or entity(ies) identificd i any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company  (Ultimace Beneficiaries) Or

b) Provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficar
Hence na disclosure s required as such,

(B) The Company has not recetved any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parties) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing ot otherwise ) that the company shall;
a) Dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other person(s) or entity(ies) identified w any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) Or

b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaties.

Hence no disclosure is required as such.

Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
The Company s not required to comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

A. K. Saraf & Associates

Chartared Accountants




v)

(vi)

(vif)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

NOTES TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at at and for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rs. in Lakhs)

(viii) Details of Benami Property held : Additional Disclosure

(xiii) Undisclosed Income

(xiv) Details of Crypto Currency Or Virtual Currency

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Right -of- Use Assets
The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the
cutrent reporting period and also repotting period and also for previous year's reporting period.

Loans or Advances to Specified Persons

The Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined
under the Companies Act 2013, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are (a) repayable on demand, or (b)
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

Intangible Assets Under Development
The Company does not have any intangible assets undex development during the current and previous year reporting
period.

The Company does not hold any Benami Property and hence there were no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the Rules made
thereunder, hence no disclosure is required to be given as such.

Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter as at the date of the balance sheet or on the date of approval of
the financial statements, hence no disclosure is required as such.

Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company does not have any transactions with Companies which are struck off under Section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956, hence no disclosure is required as such.

Registeration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

Thete are no charges against the companies which are yet to be registered or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period, hence no disclosures are required as such.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company does not have investment in any downstream companies for which it has to comply with the number of
layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number,
of layers) Rules, 2017, hence no disclosure is required as such.

The Company does not have any undisclosed Income which was not tecorded in the books of accounts and which has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provisions. Also the Company does not have previously unrecorded income and
relared assets which were required to be properly recorded in the books of accounts during the year.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year, hence
disclosure requirments for the same is not applicable.




3 The previous years figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary as per the
Schedule T1II of the Companies Act, 2013. Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral
past of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to

the current year.
'
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